بسم الله الرحمن الرحيم Sudan University of Science and Technology College of Graduate Studies

Effect of dietary supplementation of *Coriandrum Sativum* (Kuzbara) Powder on the performance and dressing percentage of broiler chickens

اثر اضافة مسحوق الكزبره في العلف على الأداء الإنتاجي ونسبة التصافي للدجاج اللاحم

By

Atifa Babiker Hisseen Osman

B.Sc.in Animal Production Science and Technology Sudan University of Science and Technology, (SUST) 2000

AThesis Submitted for partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science (M.Sc.) in Tropical Animal Production

Supervisor: Dr. Abubakr Sayed Ali

December 2017

بسم الله الرحمن الرحيم

الاستهلال

قَالَ تَعَالَىٰ:

﴿ ٱلَوْ تَرَ ٱنَّ ٱللَّهُ ٱنزَلَ مِنَ ٱلسَّمَآءِ مَآءَ فَأَخْرَجْنَا بِهِ مَرَتَ تُحْنَلِفً ٱلْوَنَهُ ٱلْوَنَهُمَا وَمِنَ ٱلْجِبَالِ جُدَدُ بِيضٌ وَحُمْرُ تُحْتَكِفُ ٱلْوَنَهُ وَعَزَابِيبُ سُودٌ ﴿ وَمِنَ ٱلنَّعِمَ وَمِنَ ٱلنَّاسِ وَٱلدَّوَآتِ وَٱلأَنْعَمِ مُخْتَلِفٌ ٱلْوَنَهُ كَذَلِكَ إِنَّمَا يَخْشَى ٱللَّهُ مِنْ عِبَادِهِ ٱلْعُلَمَةُ إِنَّ عَمَدُ مُخْتَلِفٌ ٱلْوَنَهُ كَذَلِكَ إِنَّمَا يَخْشَى ٱللَّهُ مِنْ عِبَادِهِ ٱلْعَلَمَةُ أَنْإِنَّهُ مُخْتَلِفٌ ٱلْوَنَهُ كَذَلِكَ إِنَّمَا يَخْشَى ٱللَّهُ مِنْ عِبَادِهِ ٱلْعَلَمَةُ أَنْإِنَّهُ مُخْتَلِفٌ ٱلْوَنَهُ وَمَا يَنْ مَعْتَلُهُ اللَّهُ مِنْ عَبَادِهِ اللَّهُ مَنْ عَبَادِهِ الْعَلَمَةُ أَنْوَنَهُ مُخْتَلِفٌ ٱلْوَنَهُ وَمَا إِنَّهُ وَمِنَ اللَّهُ مَنْ عَبَادِهِ اللَّهُ مِنْ عِبَادِهِ الْعُلَمَةُ أَنْ إِنَّ مُخْتَلِفٌ ٱلْوَنَهُ وَمَا يَعْذَلُكُ أَنْ مَا يَخْشَى اللَّهُ مِنْ عِبَادِهِ ٱلْعُلَمَةُ أَنْوَنَهُ وَعَنْ إِنَّكُمُ مُخْتَلِفُ ٱللَّهُ مَنْ عَبَادِهِ ٱلْعَلْمَةُ إِنَّهُ اللَّهُ مِنْ عَبَادِهِ الْعُلْمَةُ أَنْ إِنَّهُ مَنْ عَا اللَّهُ عَنْ عَنَالَة عَالَةُ مَنْ عَبَادِهُ مَنْ عَبَادِهُ الْعَلْمَةُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَنْ عَبَادُهُ اللَهُ مَنْ عَالَهُ مَنْ عَنْ عَالَةُ مُنْ عَالَةُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَنْ عَنْهُ اللَهُ مَنْ عَالَةُ عَالَ عَالَةُ عَالَةُ مَا اللَهُ مَالَا عَالَهُ عَنْتَلَهُ مُنْ عَامَةُ مُنْكَالُهُ مَا مَنْ مَاللَهُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مُ اللَهُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَا عَنْ عَالَةُ مَا اللَهُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَنْ اللَهُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا عَالَهُ مَا مَا عَالَةُ مَا عَالَةُ مَا عَالَةُ مَا مَا عَالَةُ مَا عَنْ الْعَالَةُ مُنْ مَا مَنْ الْعَالَةُ مَا عَالَةُ مَا مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَنْ اللَهُ مَنْ اللَهُ مَا مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَنْ عَالَةُ مَالَةُ مَا مَنْ عَالَةُ مَالْحَالَةُ مُنْ مَا عَنْ اللَهُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَالْمَ اللَهُ مَا مَنْ مَا مُنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَنْ عَالَةُ مَا مَا عَالَةُ مَا عَالِهُ مَا مَنْ الْعَالَةُ مَا مَا عَالَةُ مَا مُ مُنْ مَاللَهُ مَا مَالَةُ مُنْ اللَهُ مَا مَاللَهُ مَا مُنْ عَالِهُ مَا مُنْ عَالَةُ الْعَالَةُ مَا مَا مُوا مُنْ مَا مُوالَا مُ إِنَا الْعَاهُ مَالَةُ مَا مَالْمُ مَا مَا عَا مَا مَا عَا م



صدق الله العظيم

Dedication

I dedicate this: To my mother and father To my Husband To my Brothers and sisters To my Daughters To my friends and Colleagues With love...

Atifa

Acknowledgement

Praise and unlimited thanks to Allah, who gave me the strength and patience to complete this work.

I wish to express my great thanks and gratitude to my supervisor Prof.Dr. Mohamed Tag Eldin Ibrahim for his guidance, advice, help and encouragement throughout the period of the research. Special thanks go to Dr. Abubakr Sayed Ali for his unlimited help, patience, kindness and gratefulness that followed this work with good temper through the study period.

My greatest thanks are extended to my mother for her unlimited help and financial support during my research study. Deepest thank with love to my husband for his encouragements and spiritual support to complete my work. I would like to thank my family with special love to my daughters (Gawarear, Gawafi, Gotoof and Genwan). Finally, I express my thanks to those who helped me and could not be mentioned individually.

Abstract

This study was carried out to evaluate the effect of adding different levels of *coriander sativum* in broiler diets on the production performance and dressing percentage. One hundred and twenty 9 day old unsexed broiler chicks (Hubbard F15) with average weight 135g were divided into three groups (40chicks/group). Each group was sub-divided into (4) replicates (10 chicks/replicate), in a completely randomized design. Three experimental diets were formulated twice to meet the nutrient requirements of broiler chicks for starter and finisher periods. The control diet (group A) with no C. sativum (0%), diets (groups, B and C) contained (0.1 and 0.5%) of C. sativum respectively. Complete randomized design was used. The obtained data from this study was analyzed using one way ANOVA followed by least significant difference (LSD) to test the differences between all studied levels. The results showed no significant different of different levels of C. sativum (p>0.05) on feed intake, weight gain, feed conversion ratio, production efficiency factor, protein efficiency ratio, energy efficiency ratio and dressing percentage. The conclusion from this study was that group C (0.5%)ranked for the highest value in most of the studied performance parameters.

الخلاصة

أجريت هذه الدراسة لتقييم اثر إضافة مستويات مختلفه من الكزبره الى علائق الدجاج اللاحم على الأداء ونسبه التصافى.استخدم عدد 120 كتكوت عمر 9 يوم غير مجنس من سلاله (الهبردF15) بمتوسط وزن (135جرام) وزعت الطيور عشوائيا الى 3 مجموعات (40 طائر لكل مجموعه)، كل مجموعه قسمت الى 4 مكررات (10 طيور/مكرره) وفقا للنظام العشوائي الكامل، تم تركيب ثلاث علائق للتجربة بحيث تلبي الإحتياجات من العناصر الغذائية لكتاكيت اللحم خلال مرحلتى البادى والناهى حيث إحتوت العليقة (A) التحكم على (%0) كزبره، أما العليقتين(B وC) إحتوت على (%1.0 و %0.5) كزبره على التوالى. أخضعت النتائج المتحصل عليها من هذة الدراسة لتحليل التباين في الإتجاة الواحد وأتبعت باختبار اقل فرق معنوي (LSD) لإختبار الفرق بين المجموعات.اظهرت النتائج عدم وجود تأثير معنوى للكزبره الإنتاجيه، معدل كفاءة البروتين، معدل كفاءة الطاقة و نسبه التصافى . خلصت الدراسه الى ان معدل اضافة (%0.5)من مسحوق الكزبره الى العليقة في المجموعة (2) قد احتل أعلى قيم معدل اضافة (%0.5)من مسحوق الكزبره الى العليقة في المجموعة (C) قد احتل أعلى قيم

Title	Page
Holy Quran Version	Ι
Dedication	II
Acknowledgement	III
Abstract	VI
Arabic abstract	V
Table of contents	VI
List of table	IVI

Table of contents

CHAPTER ONE

1

INTRODUCTION CHAPTER TWO

LITERATURE REVIEW	3
2.1- Feed additives	3
1.1.1- Phytogenic feed additives	3
1.1.1.1- Classification	3
1.1.1.2 - Mode of action	4
2.2- Coriander sativum	5
2.2.1- Chemical composition	5
2.2.2-The medical importance of <i>C.sativum</i>	6
2.2.3- Traditional uses	7
2.3-Poultry	
2.3.1- Effect of dietary supplementation of C.sativum on broiler performance	7
2.3.1.1-Feed intake	7
2.3.2.1- Body weight and bodyweight gain	8
2.3.1.3 - Feed conversion ratio.	8
2.3.1.4- Protein efficiency ratio	9
2.3.1.5- Energy efficiency ratio	9
2.3.1.6- Production efficiency factor	9
2.3.2- Effect of some environmental factors on performance	9
2.3.2.1-Water consumption	9
2.3.2.2-Heatsteres.	10

CHAPTER THREE

MATERIALS AND METHODS

3.1-Experimental site and duration	11
3.2- Experimental house	11
3.3- Experimental birds and management	11
3.4- Vaccination Program	12
3.5-Experimental diets	12
3.6-Performance measurement	16
3.6.1-Feed intake (FI)	16
3.6.2-Body weight (BW) and body weight gain (BWG)	16
3.6.3-Feed conversion ratio (FCR)	16
3.7-Mortality	16
3.8-Dressing percentage	16
3.9-Determination of other feed evaluation parameters	17
3.9.1-Protein efficiency ratio (PER)	17
3.9.2-Energy efficiency ratio (EER)	17
3.9.3-Production efficiency ratio (PEF)	17
3.10-Stateistical analysis	17

CHAPTER FOUR

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3-	The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on broiler performance	18
	3.1- The effect <i>C.sativum</i> of on feed intake	18
	3.2-The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on weight gain	19
	3.3-The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on feed conversion ratio	20
	3.4-The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on protein efficiency ratio (PER)	21
	3.5- The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on energy efficiency ratio (EER)	22
	3.6- The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on production efficiency factors(PEF)	23
	3.7-The effect of <i>C.sativum</i> on dressing percentage	24
	CHAPTER FIVE	

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 25

REFERENCE

26

List of table

Table	Title	Page
1	Proximate analysis of <i>c. sativum</i>	13
2	Pre starter chemical composition	13
3	Ingredients percentage and Calculated analysis of the experimental starter diets	14
4	Ingredients percentage and Calculated analysis of the experimental finisher diets	15
5	The effect of <i>C.Sativum</i> on feed intake (g/bird)	18
6	The effect of <i>C.Sativum</i> on weight gain (g/bird)	19
7	The effect of <i>C.Sativum</i> on feed conversion ratio (FCR)	20
8	The effect of <i>C.Sativum</i> on protein efficiency ratio	21
9	The effect of <i>C.Sativum</i> on energy efficiency ratio	22
10	The effect of <i>C.Sativum</i> on production efficiency factor	23
11	The effect of C.Sativum on rdressing percentage	24

CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

Uses of natural products as substitution to conventional medicine and antibiotics are increased in the last few decades hence the researches are run to find alternative agents to serve as curing materials for several digestive system diseases and feed additives or growth promoters. Aromatic plants and its extracted essential oils from these plants are the most important part of human diet; beside enhancing flavor they become more important due to their effects as antimicrobial and stimulating agent in the animal digestive system (Guler, 2005). Recently the science has started paying attention to the properties of spices (Chaudhry and Tariq, 2006).

Herbs and Aromatic plants have been used traditionally and natural therapy as pharmaceuticals, antiparasitic, anthelminic, analgesic and stimulating effects in the animal digestive system (Egayyar et al., 2001 and Lee et al., 2004), however, only in recent years aromatic plants and their extracts were introduced to the animal feeding. Some herbs or herbal extracts can beneficially affect feed intake, secretion of digestive tract juices and immune system of animals. C. sativum as natural feed additives in poultry nutrition may be of great benefit and value especially for broiler groweres. The beneficial effects of these herbs in animal nutrition may include the stimulation of appetite and feed intake, improvement of endogenous digestive enzyme secretion, activation of immune antibacterial. antiviral, antioxidant response and and antihelminthtic action (singh et al., 2002, Cabuk et al., 2003, Amel et al., 2006, . However, its influence on growth performance of broiler chicks had not been sufficiently documented specially their additive and cumulative properties.

1

The objective of this study is to evaluate the effect of added *C.sativum* on the performance of broiler chicks and dressing percentage.

CHAPTER TWO LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1-Feed additives:

Feed additives are used worldwide for many different reasons such as covering needs of essential nutrients and others, increasing growth performance, feed intake and hence optimize feed utilization, enhancing product quality. Substances such as antibiotics and B-agonists might had high risks are banned in animal diets. As such, the feed industry is concerned on valuable alternatives which could be safe for consumers such as probiotics, prebiotics, enzymes and highly available minerals as well as the herbs can be alternatives to metabolic modifiers and antibiotics (Wenk, 2000).

2.1.1-Phytogenic feed additives:

Phytogenic feed additives (phytobiotics/botanicals) are products derived from plant and used in agricultural livestock animals feed to improve their performance. Also are commonly defined as plant-derived compounds added to diets to enhance the productivity of livestock animals through improvement of feed properties, promotion of the animals' production performance, and improving the quality of food gained from those animals (Windisch *et al.*, 2008).

2.1.1.1 Classification:

Phytogenics are wide range of substances that have been classified by Windish *et al* (2008), according to botanical origin, processing, and composition to:

-Herbs which are non-woody flowering plants known to have medicinal properties.

- Spices which are herbs with intensive smell or taste, commonly added to human food such as coriander, garlic, anise, cinnamon, oregano, chili, pepper, rosemary and thyme.

-Essential oils which are aromatic oily liquids derived from plant materials such as flowers, leaves, fruits and roots.

- Oleoresins which are extracts derived by non-aqueous solvents from plant material.

Windisch *et al.*, (2008) reported that the active content of the substances in these products are different depending on several factors including: the part of the plant used (grains, leaves, roots, bark, flowers or buds), the season of harvesting and geographical origin and the technique of treatment (cold, steam distillation, extraction or maceration with non-aqueous solvent).

2.1.1.2- Mode of action:

Phytogenics feed additives have several actions on improving performace of livestock animals such as increasing feed intake by enhancing the flavor and odor hence palatability improvement especially with the use of essential oils (Kroismayr *et al.*, 2006), improvement in gut function by stimulating the effect of phytogenic substances on digestive secretions, such as digestive enzymes, bile, and mucus (Chaudhry and Tariq 2006, Egayyar 2001, Singh 2002, Cabuk 2003, , Frankic 2004 and Rajeshwari and Andallu 2011), anti-oxidative properties of some phytogenic substances which are attributed to the phenolic terpenes in the essential oils. (Aeschbach, 1994 and Jimenez-Alvarez *et al.*, 2008) and antimicrobial effects of plant-derived which are mainly attributed to the essential oils of these plants, the plants contain the monoterpenes, carvacrol and thymol, have been demonstrated with high efficacy in vitro

against several pathogens found in the intestinal tract. (Baratta 1998,and Jugl-Chizzola 2005).

2.2-Coriander sativum:

Coriandrum sativum (C. sativum) belongs to the family Umbelliferae (Rajeshwari and Andallu 2011), It is a herbal plant, commonly named (kuzbura), indigenously distributed in Italy, but it is widely cultivated in the Netherlands, central and eastern Europe, Mediterranean countries such as Morocco, Malta, Egypt, also it found in China, India and Bangladesh. (Pathak et al., 2011). It tolerates wide range of different climatic conditions and is extensively cultivated in northern Sudan (Khalid et al., 2012). It's an erect annual herb with pronounced taproot, and slender branching stems up to 20-70 cm in height. The leaves are lanceolate, green or dark green, glabrous on both surfaces and are variable in shape and lobed. The flowers are borne in small umbels, white or light pink, asymmetrical, with the petals pointing away from the centre (Mandal and Mandal, 2015), while the fruit are round in shape, fruit globular, mericarps usually united by their margins forming a cremocarp about 2-4mm in diameter, uniformly brownishyellow or brown, glabrous, sometimes crowned by the remains of sepals and styles, primary ridges 10, wavy and slightly inconspicuous secondary ridges 8, straight, it has aromatic odour. It has spicy and characteristic taste (Handa and Kaul 1996).

2.2.1- Chemical composition:

Naeemasa *et al.*, (2015) reported that the coriander seeds contain 88% dry matter, 153 g/kg crude protein, 336g/kg crude fiber, 200g/kg ether extract and 95g/kg Ash. Moreover, the essential oil content of *C. sativum* fruits was 0.8% (v/w). Moreover, Rajeshwari and Andallu (2011) mentioned that the composition of the volatile oils determine the odour and flavour character and it contains both steam-volatile and fixed oil. The volatile oil is rich in beneficial phytonutrients, including: carvone, geraniol, limonene, borneol, camphor, elemol, and linalool. In the unripe fruits and the vegetative parts of the plant, aliphatic aldehydes predominate in the steam-volatile oil and are responsible for the peculiar, fetid-like aroma. On ripening, the fruits acquire a more pleasant and sweet odour and the major constituent of the volatile oil is the monoterpene alcohol, linalool. Furthermore, Omnia and Itmad, (2017) reported that about 97% of the present investigated coriander oil was monoterpenes, 87% of which were oxygenated, no sesquiterpenes were detected in the oil. The major constituents identified were linalool (64.61%) a-pinene (5.94%), (+)-2-bornanone (4.73%), a-terpinolene (6.79%), α -pinene (5.94%), and geranyl acetate (2.46%). Also Omnia and Itmad, (2017) reported that the composition of the essential oil from coriander cultivated in Sudan resembled the composition of previously investigated essential oils from coriander world-wise in term of linalool domination.

2.2.2-The medical importance of *C. sativum*:

Elkamali *et al.*, (2015) reported that phenolic, flavonoid and terpenoids compounds are found to be responsible for the antioxidant activities of the extracts of all effective plants. Also, Pathak *et al.*, (2011) and Rajeshwaari and Andallu, (2011) reported that different parts of the *C. sativum* plant such as leaves, flower seed, and fruit, had antioxidant activity, diuretic, ant-diabetic, sedative, anti-microbial activity, anti-convulsant activity, hypnotic activity and anthelmintic activity and anti-mutagenic. Also, Barros, (2012) reported that the different polyphenols and other phytochemicals in *C. sativum*, related to its high antioxidant activity and can be used for indigestion, rheumatism, and prevention of lipid peroxidation damage. Furthermore, Balasundram *et al.*,(2006) and

Bhat *et al.*, (2014) reported in animals *C. sativum* could exhibit a widerange of physiological properties, such as anti-allergenic, antiatherogenic, anti-inflammatory, anti-microbial, anti-thrombotic, cardioprotective, and vasodilatory effects. There are many factors that influence the chemical composition of plant essential oils and their extracts and other factors that could affect the results of *in vivo* experiments are species and subspecies, geographical location, harvesting time and state of maturity of plants, parts of plant, extraction methods and duration of conservation of plant extracts, Brene and Roura, (2010)

2.2.3- Traditional uses:

C. sativum is used in the preparation of many household medicines to cure bed cold, seasonal fever, nausea, vomiting, stomach disorders and also used as a drug for indigestion, against worms, rheumatism and pain in the joints. Many of healing properties of *C. sativum* can be attributed to its exceptional phytonutrients and hence, it is often referred to as store house for bioactive compounds. (Rajeshwari and Andallu, 2011). Also, (Deepa and Anuradha, 2011) reported that all parts of *C. sativum* herb can be used as flavoring agent and/or as traditional remedies for the treatment of different diseases in the folk medicine systems of different civilizations. Gray and Flatt, (1999) mentioned that *C. sativum* seed extract might used in curing diabetic mellitus as folk medicine as stimulator of insulin secretion from colon B- cell line. Also Debella *et al.*, (2007) reported anthelmintic activities when a crude solution and hydroalcoholic extracts of the *C. sativum* seeds was used.

2.3-Poultry:

2.3.1- Effect of dietary supplementation of *C.Sativum* on broiler performance:

2.3.1.1-Feed intake:

Guler *et al.*, (2005) found that dietary supplementation of 0.5%, 1%, 2% and 4% coriander seed increased the feed intake except by 0.5% group which it was not differ from control group (0%). Also, Saeid and Al-Nasry, (2010) reported that birds fed diets containing different levels of coriander seed (0.1%, 0.2% and 0.3%) showed lower feed intake than control group (0%). Hamodi *et al.*, (2010) and Barad *et al.*, (2016) mentioned that addition of 2% of coriander in the broiler diets could improve the feed intake. Same finding by Naeemasa *et al.*, (2015) indicated that 1.5% inclusion of coriander powder in broiler diet might improve the feed intake.

2.3.1.2-Body weight and body weight gain:

Guler *et al.*, (2005) reported that the dietary supplementation of (0.5%, 1%, 2% and 4%) coriander seed increased weight gain and showed the best responses at 2% level of inclusion. Also, Saeid and Al-Nasry, (2010) reported that birds fed diets contain different levels of coriander seed (0.1%, 0.2% and 0.3%) improved body weight and body weight gain. Furthermore added 2% of coriander in the broiler diets improved overall body weight gain (Barad *et al.*, 2016). Inclusion of 952 mg/kg of coriander extract in drinking water improved the weight gain of broiler chickens (Naeemasa *et al.*, 2015).

2.3.1.3- Feed conversion ratio:

Guler *et al.*, (2005) stated that broiler diet with 2% coriander seed improved feed conversion by 4.3% over the control group. Also, Saeid and El-Nasry, (2010) found improvement in feed conversion ratio of diet contain 3% coriander seed. The supplementing broiler diets with 0.2% mixture of garlic and ginger significantly improved feed conversion ratio, while the high inclusion rates (0.3% and 0.4% resulted in a significant (P \leq 0.05) reduction in feed conversion ratio (Mawahib *et al.*,2016).

2.3.1.4-Protein efficiency ratio:

The supplementation of different levels of lysine in broiler diets (starter and grower) did not affect protein efficiency ratio (Nasr *et al.*, 2012). The addition of Silicate Minerals, 3% Zeolite in broiler diets increase Protein efficiency ratio in starter phase, also the increment of 3% kaolin in broiler diets increase Protein efficiency ratio in overall period (Safaeikatouli *et al.*, 2012). Protein efficiency ratio was not affected by the supplementation of different levels of *prosopis juliflora* seed in broiler diets (Mohammadi *et al.*, 2013).

2.3.1.5-Energy efficiency ratio:

Energy efficiency ratio was not affected by addition of different levels of lysine on broiler diets in (starter and grower) (Nasr *et al.*, 2012). Broiler diets contain 3% zeolite (Silicate Minerals) improve energy efficiency ratio in starter phase also inclusion of 3% Kaolin in broiler diets improve energy efficiency ratio in overall period Safaeikatouli *et al.*, 2012).

2.3.1.6- Production efficiency factor:

The addition of 300 ppm Oregano essential oil as phylogenic feed additives on broiler diets impaired production efficiency factor, (Maziar and Moein, 2017). Production efficiency factor increased by supplementation of different levels of lysine in broiler diets (Naser., *et al.*, 2012). Broiler diets containing 4% Prosopis juliflora seed (JPS) decrease production efficiency factor (PEF) (Mohammadi *et al.*, 2013).

2.3.2-Effect of some environmental factors on broilers performance:2.3.2.1-Water consumption:

Broiler performance was influenced by water restriction during their first week of life, but when after water is fed adlibitum, negative effects are reversed allowing the birds to recover performance levels. During the first week of life when birds are submitted to water restriction, they present subsequent compensatory growth, as shown by their better performance during the second and third weeks of the experiment as compared to the birds offered water adlibitum. The addition of 450 ppm of sodium in the drinking water did not cause intoxication in the broilers (Castro *et al.*, 2009).

2.3.2.2- heat stress:

Ambient temperature and long-term feed restriction significantly affect broiler performance. Moreover, long-term feed restriction at high ambient temperature increase heat resistance and improve the heat tolerance of growing broilers, when exposed to heat waves in summer season. (Abu-Dieyeh, 2006). During the heat-stress period applied, chickens decreased eating time to reduce heat generation. Drinking duration showed the opposite trend (Li *et al.*, 2015).

CHAPTER THREE MATERIAL AND METHODS

3.1- Experimental site and duration:

The study was conducted at the Poultry Farm Sudan, University of Science and Technology, College of Animal Production Science and Technology during the period from the 31th March to the 13th May 2017, in which the ambient temperature was ranged between (25.3–44.7°C) and 20% relative humidity.

3.2-Experimental house:

The experiment was done in an open sided house, constructed from iron sheets roofing, wire netting sides and concrete floor with deep litter. The long axis of the house extended from east to west facing the wind direction for good ventilation. The house was partitioned into twelve experimental units (replicates) $(1 \times 1 \text{ m}^2)$ of equal area with enough working space allowance. The experimental house was dry cleaned, washed by water using high pressure pump then burned. The northern and southern sides of the house were covered by nylon bags, after that the house was disinfected with formalin (37%, 5ml/ litter). The house was left closed over night and then spread litter from wheat straw of 5 cm depth before arrival of the chicks. Each replicate was provided with one feeder and one drinker (8 litter) capacity. Both feeder and drinker washed well by water and soap and disinfected.

3.3- Experimental birds and management:

A total of one hundred and twenty one day old unsexed broiler chicks (*Hubbard F15*) were purchased from Ommat Company for Poultry Production, the chicks were incubated for a week and fed on (*Na Po*) pre starter broiler (Table 2). After the incubation period the chicks were weighted and randomly allocated into three groups (40 chicks/group) of an average weight (135g/bird) each group was subdivided into four replicates (10 chicks each).

3.4-Vaccination program:

During the incubation period the chicks were given multi vitamins (AD3E 2ml/litter) in water for 7 days. On the 7th day each chick was vaccinated against Infectious bronchitis and Newcastle disease (IB+ND) by spray. On the 11th day each chick was vaccinated against Gumboro (IBD) by drop in eyes. On 18th day each chick was vaccinated again against Gumboro (IBD) by drop in eyes. On the 21th day each chick was received the second dose of the ND by drop in eyes and 1ml/L of AD3E Vitamins was added in drinking water after each vaccination. On the period from 27th to 30th all birds were provided with preventive dose of Doxycycline (0.3g/litter) for appearing of respiratory symptoms.

3.5-Experimental diets:

The *C.sativum* was purchased from the Omdurman local market, grinded then 30g was sent to the lab for the chemical analysis (table 1). The other ingredients were purchased from the local market too. Coriander powder was mixed to the diets and three experimental diets were formulated twice according to (NRC. 1994) recommendations, for starter and finisher stage (tables 3 and 4). Diet A served as control group with no level of coriander (0%) and the other two diet groups (B and C) contain coriander at level of (0.1% and 0.5%) respectively.

Item	%		
Moisture	5.5		
Crude Protein	6.20		
Crude Fiber	4.75		
Ash	7.5		
E.E	2.05		

 Table 1. Proximate analysis of C sativum

 Table (2):- Pre starter chemical composition:

Item	%
Metabolizable Energy (kcal/kg)	3.100.00
Crude protein	23
Crude Fat	6.50
Crude Fiber	0.50
Ash	3
Lysine	1.40
Calcium	1
Sodium	0.16
Thireonine	0.90
Available Phosphorus	0.62
Methionine and cystine	0.99

Na Po Pre Starter Feed, Champrix Company,(Netherlands)

Ingredients	А	В	С
Sorghum	65	65	65
Ground nut cake	27.3	27.3	27.3
Concentrate*	5	5	5
Oil	1.6	1.6	1.6
DCP	1	1	1
Antitoxin	0.1	0.1	0.1
C sativum	0	0.1	0.5
Total	100	100.1	100.5
Calculated analysis			
Metabolizable energy (kcal/kg)	3073.659	3073.659	3073.659
Crude protein	22	22	22
Methionine	0.34	0.34	0.34
Lysine	1.20	1.20	1.20
Calcium	0.68	0.68	068.
Available phosphorous	0.43	0.43	0.43

Table 3.Feed Composition and calculated analysis of the experimental starter diets

*concentrate(WAFI)composition: crude protein35%, crude fat 2.7%, crude fiber4.8%, calcium6.8%, available phosphorus 5%, lysine 12%, Methionine 3.71% and (ME) Metabolizable

energy 1897.77 kcal/kg.

Ingredients	А	В	С
Sorghum	72	72	72
Ground nut cake	19	19	19
Concentrate*	5	5	5
Oil	3.2	3.2	3.2
DCP	0.6	0.6	0.6
Antitoxin	0.2	0.2	0.2
C sativum	0	0.1	0.5
Total	100	100.1	100.5
Calculated analysis			
Metabolizable energy (kcal/kg)	3206.643	3206.643	3206.643
Crude protein	18.82	18.82	18.82
Methionine	0.28	0.28	0.28
Lysine	0.96	0.96	0.96
Calcium	0.55	0.55	0.55
Available phosphorous	0.37	0.37	0.37

 Table 4. Feed Composition and calculated analysis of the experimental finisher diets

*concentrate (WAFI) composition: crude protein 35%, crude fat 2.8%, crude fiber 4.6%, calcium 6.56%, available phosphorus 5.14%, lysine10%, Methionine 3% and (ME) Metabolizable energy 1904.45 kcal/kg

3.6-Perfomance measurements:

3.6.1-Feed intake (FI):

Feed intake for the birds of each replicate was calculated every day by subtracting the amount of residual feed from the amount of provided feed.

3.6.2-Body weight (BW) and body weight gain (BWG):

Body weight for the birds of each replicate was recorded weekly and weight gain was calculated weekly by subtracting the body weight at the beginning of the week from the body weight at the end of the same week.

3.6.3-Feed conversion ratio (FCR):

Feed conversion ratio (FCR) was calculated weekly by dividing the amount of feed consumed by body weight gain (g feed/g gain).

3.7-Mortality:

Mortality was recorded for each group and mortality percentage was calculated.

3.8-Dressing percentage:

At the end of the study period eight birds were randomly selected, individually weighed, slaughtered then carcass weight was recorded and dressing percentage was calculated as the following:

Dressing $\% = \frac{\text{carcass weight}}{\text{live body weight}} \times 100$

3.9-Determination of other feed evaluation parpmeters:

3.9.1-Protein efficiency ratio (PER):

Protein efficiency ratio was calculated weekly according to (Kamran *et al.*, 2008) method.

 $PER = \frac{weight gain}{protein intake}$

3.9.2- Energy efficiency ratio (EER)

Energy efficiency ratio was calculated weekly according to (Kamran *et al.*, 2008) method.

 $EER = \frac{weight gain \times 100}{Energy intake}$

3.9.3-Production efficiency factor (PEF):

At the end of the period of the study the Production efficiency factor was calculated by the method of (Lemme *et al.*, 2006).

 $PEF = \frac{Final \text{ weight of bird (kg) \times livability \%}}{age (days) \times feed \text{ conversion ratio (FCR)}} \times 100$

3.10-Statistical analysis:

Complete randomized design was used. The obtained data from this study was analyzed using one way ANOVA and least significant difference (LSD) was used to compare between each group using statistical package for social science (SPSS) software program.

CHAPTER FOUR

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

4-The effect of *C.sativum* on broiler performance:

4.1-The effect of *C.sativum* on feed intake of broiler chicken:

The effect of added different levels of coriander (0%, 0.1% and 0.5%) on feed intake (Table 5) shows no significant differences (P>0.05), between the experimental groups except in the 4th week, Spite of that group C (0.5%) showed the highest feed intake values. These results were different from those of Guler *et al.*, (2005); Saeid and Al-Nasry, (2010) and Barad *et al.*, (2016).This might be due to different inclusion rate of coriander seed powder, coriander type and management conditions particularly the housing system.

Dariod	Feed intake (g/bird/week)			Significant
renou	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	Significant
Week1	114.43 ± 24.78	109.75±19.53	128.00±16.95	NS
Week2	355.86±29.76	331.94±71.75	406.36±51.44	NS
Week3	482.40±39.71	505.85 ± 82.76	557.41±121.23	NS
Week4	548.10 ± 67.97^{b}	$624.88 {\pm} 78.25^{\mathrm{ab}}$	720.88 ± 83.43^{a}	*
Week5	696.49±99.58	752.63±94.73	782.56±239.31	NS
Starter	470.28 ± 53.00	441.69±90.74	534.36±52.39	NS
Finisher	1726.98±166.33	1883.35±249.56	2060.85 ± 429.27	NS
Overall	2197.26±151.11	2325.03±334.31	2595.21±476.43	NS

 Table 5. Effect of C. sativum on broiler feed intake

N:40 bird/treatment

*=significant different at P<0.05

NS=No significant differences

Different superscript letters within the same row means significant difference at (P<0.05)

4.2- The effect of *C.sativum* on weight gain of broiler chicken:

The effect of supplemented different levels of coriander (0%, 0.1%) and 0.5%) on broilers chicken weight gain (Table 6) showed no significant differences (P>0.05), But group C (0.5%) showed the highest weight gain values. These findings were agreed with those of Guler *et al.*, (2005). Deferent results were recorded by Hamodi *et al.*, (2010), Al-Mashhadani.,(2011), Soha.,(2013) and Saleh, (2014), this could be due to the differences in inclusion rate and type of coriander .

 Table 6. Effect of C.sativum on broiler weight gain

Dariod	Weight gain (g/bird/week)			Significant
renou	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	Significant
Week1	106.58±33.36	85.00±43.01	114.75±39.31	NS
Week2	268.44 ± 52.29	247.38 ± 34.76	305.57 ± 34.94	NS
Week3	307.20±33.26	320.97 ± 58.67	333.04 ± 65.60	NS
Week4	326.11±127.33	374.63±43.80	411.72±21.84	NS
Week5	355.97 ± 56.25	347.00±46.43	406.20 ± 42.04	NS
Starter	375.02±72.41	332.38±66.32	420.32 ± 55.43	NS
Finisher	989.28 ± 95.99	1022.88 ± 108.43	1150.96±90.35	NS
Overall	1364.30 ± 154.80	1355.25 ± 160.25	1571.28±137.27	NS

N=40 Bird/treatment

4.3- The effect of *C.sativum* on feed conversion ratio of broiler chicken:

From table (7) it is clear that, the feed conversion ratio was not affected (P>0.05) by the added levels of *c. sativum* in broilers diet. This result agreed with those of Saleh *et al.*, (2014), Naeemasa *et al.*, (2015) and Barad *et al.*, (2016). However, this result disagreed with Guler *et al.*, (2005), Hamodi *et al.*, (2010) and Farah and Al-Jaff (2011), this disagreement can be attributed to the differences in inclusion levels of *C.sativum* and type.

_	feed conversion ratio			Significant
Period	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	Significant
Week1	1.14 ± 0.34	1.55 ± 0.72	1.19 ± 0.30	NS
Week2	1.35 ± 0.17	1.34 ± 0.20	1.33 ± 0.06	NS
Week3	1.58 ± 0.17	1.61 ± 0.30	1.67 ± 0.05	NS
Week4	1.56 ± 0.22	1.82 ± 0.22	1.78 ± 0.20	NS
Week5	$2.71{\pm}1.98$	2.01±0.12	1.89 ± 0.52	NS
Starter	1.79 ± 0.19	1.99 ± 0.35	2.21±0.33	NS
Finisher	1.76 ± 0.29	1.84 ± 0.09	1.78 ± 0.27	NS
Overall	1.63 ± 0.22	1.72 ± 0.05	1.64 ± 0.18	NS

Table 7. Effect of *C.sativum* on broiler feed conversion ratio

N=40 Bird/treatment

4.4- The effect of *C.sativum* on protein efficiency ratio of broiler chicken:

Few researches were done on effect of added different levels of *C*. *sativum* on protein efficiency ratio, energy efficiency ratio and production efficiency factor. The protein efficiency ratio was not affected (P>0.05) by adding different levels of *C. sativum* in broilers diets (Table 8). These results were similar to those found by Mohamadi *et al.*, (2013). But, they were differ from those of Kamaran *et al.*, (2008).

 Table 8. The effect of different levels of C.sativum on protein efficiency ratio (PER)

	protein efficiency ratio			Significant
Period	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	Significant
Week1	4.21 ± 1.30	3.34 ± 1.35	3.99 ± 1.14	NS
Week2	3.34 ± 0.44	3.39 ± 0.57	3.36±0.14	NS
Week3	3.4 ± 0.40	3.42±0.71	3.19 ± 0.08	NS
Week4	3.47 ± 0.46	2.97 ± 0.40	3.02 ± 0.39	NS
Week5	2.58 ± 1.13	2.66 ± 0.16	3.05±1.13	NS
Starter	3.54 ± 0.43	3.36±0.13	3.50±0.19	NS
Finisher	3.08 ± 0.48	2.90 ± 0.14	3.05 ± 0.53	NS

N=40 Bird/treatment

4.5- The effect of *C.sativum* on energy efficiency ratio of broiler chicken:

The effect of adding different levels of coriander (0%, 0.1% and 0.5%) on energy efficiency ratio (Table 9) showed no significant effect (P>0.05) between studied groups. However, these findings were disagreed with those of Kamaran *et al.*, (2008).

chicking ratio (EEK)					
	energy efficiency ratio				
EER	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	Significant	
Week1	30.63±9.42	24.32±9.84	29.05±8.30	NS	
Week2	24.37 ± 3.20	24.68 ± 4.10	24.45 ± 1.01	NS	
Week3	19.98 ± 2.32	19.99 ± 4.20	18.68 ± 0.46	NS	
Week4	20.30 ± 2.72	17.38 ± 2.35	17.66 ± 2.25	NS	
Week5	15.10±6.64	15.53±0.96	17.85 ± 6.57	NS	
Starter	25.78±3.11	24.46 ± 0.96	25.48 ± 1.40	NS	
Finisher	18.01 ± 2.82	16.96 ± 0.81	17.85 ± 3.12	NS	

 Table 9. The effect of different levels of C.sativum on energy efficiency ratio (EER)

N=40 Bird/treatment

4.6- The effect of *C.sativum* on production efficiency factor of broiler chicken:

Table (10) showed the effect of adding different levels of *C*. *sativum* on production efficiency factor. The results revealed that there was no significant effect (P>0.05) among the groups. However, group C (0.5%) ranked the highest value in PEF. Results agreed with those of Pistova *et al.*, (2017) who recorded that the addition of garlic, walnut and wormwood as feed additive had no affect on PEF. On the other hand, these findings were disagreed with Maziar and Moein, (2017) who found that the addition of 300 ppm OEO (Oregano essential oil) as phylogenic feed additives on broiler diets significantly affect PEF.

 Table10. Effect of different levels of C.sativum in Production

 efficiency factor (PEF)

	Production efficiency factor			Significant
Parameter	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	Significant
PEF	21.06 ± 3.62	20.70±1.92	22.20 ± 2.05	NS

N=40 Bird/treatment NS=No significant differences

4.7- The effect of coriander seed on dressing percentage of broiler chicken:

From table (11) the dressing percentage was not significantly affected (P>0.05) by the level of *C. sativum* on broilers diets. These results were similar to those of Ouyang *et al.*, (2015) who added humic substance, garlic, walnut and wormwood, Mustafa, (2016) who added MEO(Anise, Clove and Caraway) and Pistova *et al.*, (2017) who added Alfa alfa as feed additive. While, the results were disagreed with those of Soha, (2013). This could be due to the differences in the inclusion rate of *C. sativum*.

Table 11. Effect of *C.sativum* on broiler dressing percentage

		Signific		
Parameters	A (0%)	B (0.1%)	C (0.5%)	ant
Body weight	1640.60±133.16	1747.50±351.24	1863.80±216.99	NS
Carcass weight	1162.50±82.84	1242.4±247.51	1330.60±171.44	NS
Dressing percentage	70.91±1.13	71.12±0.44	71.32±0.94	NS

N=40 Bird/treatment.

CHAPTER FIVE

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

It can be conclude from this study:

- Different levels of *C.sativum* powder improved performance parameters of broiler chickens.
- Group C (0.5%) of *C. sativum* seed powder was the highest in most performance parameters.

The study recommends:

• More studies are needed on broilers chicken performance by the addition of different levels of *C. sativum* to determine the best levels under different environmental conditions and seasons.

REFERENCES

Abu-Dieyeh, Z. H. M. (2006). Effect of Chronic Heat Stress and Long-Term Feed Restriction on Broiler Performance. International Journal of Poultry Science 5 (2): 185-190.

Aeschbach, R., Loliger, J., Scott, B.C., Murcia, A., Butler, J., Halliwell, B and Aruoma, O. I. (1994). Antioxidant actions of thymol, carvacrol, 6-gingerol, zingerone and hydroxytyrosol. *Food Chem Toxicol*. (32):31–36.

Al-Mashhadani, E. H., Farah K.Al-jaff., Hamodi, S. J and Hanan, Al Mashhadani. (2011). Effect of different levels of coriander oil on broiler performance and some physiological traits under summer condition. Pakistan journal of nutrition 10 (1):10-14.

Amel, O. B., Sabna, D. M., Samia, M. A. E., Warda, S. A., Abdel-Gadir, H. A and Adam, S. E. I. (2006). Antimicribial Activity of Petroselinum and Coriandrum satium seeds. Research Journal of microbiology 1 (4): 346-352.

Balasundram, N., Sundram, K., and Samman, S. (2006). Phenolic compounds in plants and agri-industrial by-productsAntioxidant activity, occurrence, and potential and uses. Food Chem. (99):191-203.

Barad, N.A., Savsani, H.H., Patil, S. S., Garg, D. D., Oliva, D., Vivek, S., Kalaria, V.A and Chatrabhuj, B.B. (2016). Effect of Feeding Coriander Seeds, Black pepper and Turmeric powder as Feed additives on Hematobiochemical on profile and performance of broiler chickens. International Journal of Science, and Technology, (5): 6, 3976 – 3982.

Baratta, M. T., Dorman, H. J. D., Deans, S. G., Biondi, D. M and Ruberto, G. (1998). Chemical composition, antimicrobial and antioxidative activity of laurel, sage, rosemary, oregano and coriander essential oils. *J Essent Oil Res.* (10):618–627.

Barros, L., Duenas, M., Dias, M. I., Sousa, M. J and Santos-Buelga, C. (2012). Phenolic profile of in vivo and *in vitro* grown *coriander sativum L*. Food Chem. 132(2):841-848.

Bhat, S., Kaushal, P., Kaur, M and Sharma, .H. K. (2014). Coriander (*Coriandrum sativum* L.): Processing, nutritional and functional aspects African journal of Plant Science Vol. 8(1), pp. 25-33.

Brene, A., and Roura. E., (2010). Essential oils in poultry nutrition: Main effects and modes of action. Anim. Feed. Sci. Technol. 15, 1-14.

Cabuk, M., Alcicek, A., Bozkurt, M and Imre, N. (2003). Antimicrobial properties of the essential oils isolated from aromatic plants and using possibility as alternative feed additives. II. National Animal Nutrition Congress; Konya, Turkey. pp. 184–187.

Castro, E. E. C., Junior, A. M. P., Ribeiro, A. M. L and Sbrissia, A., F. (2009). Effect of water restriction and sodium levels in the drinking water on broiler performance during the first week of life. R. Bras. Zootec., v.38, n.11, p.2167-2173.

Chaudhry, N. M. A and Tariq, P. (2006). Bactericidal activity of black pepper, bay leaf, aniseed and coriander against oral isolates. Pak. J. Pharm. Sci., (19): 214-.

Debella, A., Feleke, A., Makonnen, E., Tilahun, G and Eguale, T. (2007). *In vitro* and in vivo anthelmintic activity of crude extracts of *Coriandrum sativum against* Haemonchus contortus. Journal of Ethnopharmacology.(110):428-433. **Deepa, B. and Anuradha, C.V.**, (2011). Antioxidant potential of *coriander sativum L* seed extract. Journal of Experimental Biology. (49):30-38.

Egayyar, M. F.A., Draughon, G.D.A and Mount, J. R. (2001). Antimicrobial activity of essential oils from plants against selected pathogenic and saprophytic microorganisms. J. Food Prot., (64): 1019-1024.

Elkamali, H. H., and Hamed, S.E.M., (2015). Antioxidant Potential of some Sudanese medicinal Plant used in traditional medicine. International Journal of ScientificWorld ,3 (2) 192-198.

Farah, K. Al-Jaff. (2011). Effect of Coriander Seeds as Diet Ingredient on Blood Parameters of Broiler Chicks Raised under High Ambient Temperature. International Journal of Poultry Science 10 (2): 82-86.

Frankic K. (2004). Digestive stimulant action of spices: A myth or reality? *Indian J Med Res.* (119):167–179.

Gray, A. M. and Flatt, P. R. (1999). Insulin-releasing and insulin-like activity of the traditional anti- diabetic plant Coriandrum sativum (coriander). B r J Nutr.; 81(3):203-09.

Guler, T., Ertas, O. N., Ciftci, M., and Dalkılıc, B. (2005). The effect of coriander seed (*Coriandrum sativum* L.) as diet ingredient on the performance of Japanese quail South African Journal of Animal Science, 35 (4).

Hamodi, S. J., Al-Mashhadani, E. H., Farah, K. Al-Jaff and Hanan, E. A. (2010). Effect of Coriander Seed (*Coriandrum sativum* L.) as Diet Ingredient on Broilers Performance under High Ambient Temperature. International Journal of Poultry Science 9 (10): 968-971, 2010. Handa, S.S. and Kaul, M. K. (1996). Supplement to cultivation and utilization of medicinal plant, National Institute Of science communication, Regional research laboratory (CSIR), Jammu-Tavi, India.

http://www.fspublishers.org. ISSN Print: 1560–8530; ISSN Online: 1814–9596.

Jimenez-Alvarez, D., Giuffrida, F., Golay, P. A., Cotting, C., Lardeau A. and Keely, B. J. (2008). Antioxidant activity of oregano, parsley, and olive mill wastewaters in bulk oils and oil-in-water emulsions enriched in fish oil. *J Agric Food Chem*. (56):7151–7159.

Jugl-Chizzola, M., Spergser, J., Schilcher, F., Novak, J., Bucher, A., Gabler, C., Hagmuller, W., and Zitterl-Eglseer, K. (2005). Effects of *Thymus vulgaris L.* as feed additive in piglets and against haemolytic *E. coli* in vitro. *Berliner und Munchener Tierarztliche Wochenschrift*. (118):495–501.

Kamran, Z., Sarwar, M., Nisa, M., Nadeem, M. A., Mahmood, S., Babar, M. E. and Ahmed, S., (2008). Effect of low-protein diets having constant energy to protein ratio on performance and carcass characteristics of broiler chickens from one to thirty five days of age, Poultry Science journal (87):468-474.

Khalid, H., Abdalla, W. E., Abdelgadir, H., Opatz, T., and Efferth, T., (2012). Gems from traditional north-African medicine: medicinal and aromatic plants from Sudan. *Nat. Prod. Bioprospect.* (2): 92–103. Khartoum, Sudan.

Kroismayr, A., Steiner, T.and Zhang, C. (2006) .Influence of a phytogenic feed additive on performance of weaner piglets [abstract]. *J*

Anim Sci. 84(suppl 1). Abstract 329. Available at: <u>http://adsa.asas.org/meetings/2006/abstracts/269.pdf</u>. Accessed 11 January 2010.

Lee, K.W., Everts, H., & Beynen, A. C. (2004). Essential oils in broiler nutrition. Int. J. Poult. Sci. 3, 738-752.

Lemme, A ., Frackenpohl, U., petri, A. and Meyer, H., (2006).Response of male BUT big 6 turkeys to varying amino acid feeding programs, Poultry science journal (85):652-660.

Li, M., Wu, J. and Chen, Z. (2015).Effect of heat stress on the daily behavior of wenchang chickens. Brazilian Journal of poultry Science. v.17/n.4/559-566.

Mandal, S., and Mandal, M. (2015). Coriander (Coriandrum sativum L.) essential oil: Chemistry and biological activity, Asian Pac J Trop Biomed 5 (6): 421–428.

Mawahib, A. E., Elfadil, A. A., and Eljack, B. H. (2016). Effect of Feeding Garlic (*Allium sativum*) and Ginger (*Zingiber Officinale*) Mixture on Performance and Immune Response of Broiler Chicks, Sudan Journal of Science and Technology **17**(1): 73-79.

Maziar, M. A. and Moein, G. R. (2017). Comparison of the effect of two phytogenic compounds on growth performance and immune response of broilers, Journal of Applied Animal Research, (45):1, 603-608, DOI: 10.1080/09712119.2016.1243119.

Mohammadi, A., Nasr J., Rahmatnejad, E. and Dashtizadeh, M., (2013).performance and carcass quality of broiler chickens in response toprosopis juliflora seed (PJS) as a byproduct, Journal of agricultural technology 9(2):317-322.

Mustafa, D. B. M. (2016). Effect of Mixture of Three Herbal Essential Oils on Performance, Carcass Yield and Blood Serum Constituents of Broiler Chicks Sudan University of Science and Technology. M.Sc. thesis.

Nadeem, M., Anjum, F. M., Khan, M. I., & Tehseen, S., (2013). Nutritional and medicinal aspects of coriander (*Coriandrum sativum* L.). A review. Br. Food J. (115): 743-755.

Naeemasa, M., Alaw Qotbi, A.A., Seidavi, A.A., Norris, A., Brown D. D. & Ginindza, M. (2015). Effects of coriander (*Coriandrum sativum* L.) seed powder and extract on performance of broiler chickens, SouthAfrican Journal of Animal Science 45 (No. 4).

Nasr, S., kheiri, F., Solati A., Hajibabaei, A. and Senemari, M. (2012). The efficiency of energy and protein of broiler chickens fed on diets with different lysine concentrations, Journal of animal and veterinary advances 10(18):2394-2397.

NRC. (**1994**). National Research council. Nutrient Requirements of poultry. 9th .rev. ed. National Academy of sciences, Washington, D. C., USA.

Omnia, M. H. and Itmad, A. E. (2017). Characterization of essential oils from fruits of umbelliferous crop cultivated in Sudan II. *Coriandrum sativum* L. (Coriander) and *Foeniculum vulgare* Mill (Fennel) Journal of Pharmacognosy and Phytochemistry. 6(1): 113-116.

Ouyang, K., Xu, M., Jiang, Y and Wang, W. (2016). Effects of alfalfa flavonoids on broiler performance, meat quality and gene expression Can. J. Anim. Sci. Downloaded from www.nrcresearchpress.com by 41.67.53.157 on 10/13/17.

Pathak, N. L., Kasture, S. B., Bhatt, N. M. and Rathod, J. D. (2011) Phytopharmacological Properties of *Coriander Sativum* as a Potential Medicinal Tree: An Overview Journal of Applied Pharmaceutical Science 01 (04): 20-25.

Pistova, V., Arpasova, H., Hrncar C and Weis J. (2017). The Effect of the Humic Substances, Garlic (*Allium sativum* L.), Wormwood (*Artemisia absinthium*) and Walnut (*Juglans regia*) on Carcass Parameters of Broiler Chickens. Animal Science and Biotechnologies, 50 (1).

Rajeshwari, U and Andallu B. (2011). Isolation and simultaneous detection of flavonoids in the methanolic and ethanolic extracts of *Coriandrum sativum* L. seeds by RP-HPLC. J. FOOD SCI., 21(1-4):13-21.

Saeid, J.M. and Al-Nasry A. S. (2010).Effect of dietary Coriander seeds Supplementation on Growth Performance Carcass Traits and Some Blood Parameters of Broiler Chickens. International Journal of Poultry Science 9(9):867-870.

Safaeikatoulii, M., Boldaji, F., Dastar, B. and Hassani S.,(2012).TheEffectof Dietary Silicate MineralsSupplementation on Apparent Ileal Digestibility of Energy and Protein in Broiler Chickens. International journal of agriculture & biology sativum L.) Essential oil as a food ingredient. Food Chem Toxicol. (47): 22-34.

Saleh, A.A., Ijiri D and Ohtsuka A. (2014). Effects of summer shield supplementation on growth performance, nutrient utilisation, and plasma lipid profiles in broiler chickens. Veterinarni Medicine, 59 (11): 536–542. Sara, B. (2003). Essential oils: their antibacterial properties and potential applications in foods—a review. International Journal of Food Microbiology(94) : 223–253.

Singh, G., Kapoor, I. P., Pandey, S. K., Singh U.K and Singh, R. K. (2002). Studies on essential oils part 10; antimicrobial avtivity of volatile oils of same spices. Phytother. Res., (16): 680-682.

Soha, A. F. (2013). The efficiency of coriander seeds as dietary additives in broiler chicken's diets. Egyptian J. Nutrition and Feeds 16 (3): 491-501.

Wenk C. (2000). Recent advances in animal Feed additives such as metabolic modifiers, antimicrobial Agents, probiotics, Enzymes and Highly available minerals .Asian-Aus.J.Anim .Sci.Vol 13. No. (1):86-95.

Windisch W., Schedle K., Plitzner C and Kroismayr A. (2008). Use of phytogenic products as feed additives for swine and poultry. *J Anim Sci.* 86(suppl 14):E140-E148.